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CHAPTER V
THE DEVELOPMENT OF IRRIGATION
I

In 1880 the practice of irrigating the land was well un-
derstood by the inhabitants of the Yakima Valley although there
were at tlat t ime no projects of much importance. It has been
generally conceded that the first irrigation ditch in the valley
was constructed about 1853 by the Indian, Chief Kamiakin, to
whom the idea probably was suggested by Catholic missionaries with
whom he was a close friend., That ditch was dug from a branch of
the Shtanum Ureek, was about a guarter of a mile in length, and
was used by Kamlakin to water his garden?

The first irrigation enterprise to be undertaken by white

men was probably that of N.T. Goodwin, who in gbout 1867, dug a
small ditch from the Yakima Hyver to irrigate a small wheat field.
‘he results of watering that five-acre fiddd were so encouraging
that a group of farmers , Messrs. Goadwin, Stoolcup, Vaughn,
Mayberry, and Simmons began work on the fir st cooperative
enterprise in irrigation in the wmlley. The project was started
in the spring of 1868, but it progressed very slowly because
the men had 1ittle capital with which to prosecute the
undertakinge. The intake of the ditch was located near the

1
Layman, H story of the Yakima Valley, 352; Splawn, Kemi-

akin, 266.
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mouth of the Naches River, and when it was completed it extend=
ed to the CYoodwin place which was neur the Moxee bridge. # number
of years later igwas enlarged amd improved, asmdb ecame known a s
the Union canal,

In 1872 Charles aml Joseph Schanno and Sebastian Lauber dug a
ditch from a polnt on “htanum Creek to their half section of
land which later became the site of YakimaCity. The undertaking
was not as successful as they desired so a year or two later they
began work on vhatproved to be the first diteh of large size
and phblic utility in the valley. It had its sowce at the Naches
River about eight miles above the Schanno place, and by following
& natural hollow far a great part of 1ts length both the cost of
its canstruction and the amount of labor which it required were
reduced to aminimum., It was eighteen feet wide at the bottom,
eighteen inche deep, and was campleted in 1875?

%here were a few other small projects undertaken before 1880,
Judge‘“eck is reported to have dug a small ditch in 1872 before
the first ditch of the Schanno brdhers was constructed. It carried
water from the Yakims fiver to his place just b8HELE north of
Yakima City., “nother was constructed by William Lince, and it

conducted water from Ahtanum Creek to irrigate his lamd .

o :
Rose Boening,"History of Irrigation in the State of "ash-
ington" in the Washington Historical Guarterly, 9:264 (Octo-
ber, 1918): Interstate Publlshing Company, iilustrated His-
torE, 157. -

3Boening,_"H story of Irrigation," 264: Lyman, History of
the Yakima Valley 353«
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Other early projects werethose of J .M. Paxter amd a Mr. Lockwood
on the south side of the river in the vieinlty of Prosser, and tie
Ahtanum ard Wide Hollow canal which began on the narth ‘side of
“htanum creek aml extended far ten miles toward North 'S(akfima.4
In 1880 & group of farmers a few miles below Yakima (’ity
began the diggping of the Konnewock Ditch. . The undertaking was
g cooperative enterprise and shares of stock were sold to raise
the necessary capital for its construction. Work on the ditch
progressed slowly since the farmers themselves fur nished most of
the labo.f, ard dw ing he plowing, cultivating and harvesting
seasons theoy had little time t:: apare for other activities,
One dbserver reported in April of that year that for some time on}y
oneé man had been working on thé& ditch, éy June sbout two huhdred
rods of the most difficult part had been canpleted at a total
expenditure of a little over one thousand dollars. #ccording
to a report of Robert Dunn, the secretary ofthe organization,
thiri;y-fbur shares had been subacribed by June 26, 1880,
makiﬁg subscriptions to the stock not as numerous as desired.,
The owners perservered, however, until the canal was finished,
It watered sbout 3,000 acre: of land in the Parker bottom. Sy
1889 it was twenty miles in length and the owners were planning
to extend it still farther. At a moeting in March the members
who were present set May 25 as the dat e for a meeting to vote

upon increasing the capital stock of t he c anpany to %¥15,000 for

4 "
Ibid., 353, 354; ‘onneson, First Report of the Board of

Horticulture, 290.
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that purpose, but in the meantime a rev compamy had ben organized
to make irrigated lands avallable throughout the entire Yakima
Valley; and in the fall of 1890 the Kennewock Yitch company

was of fered a contract by which it would transfer its holdings

to the Northern Pacific, Yakima & Kittitas Irrigation Company.

The contract provided that the Konnewock ditch should become

the property of the irrigation caupany in exchange for which each
stockholder in the Konnewock Piteh company would receive four
inches of water far each share of stock owned, f or a period of
fifty years. Some of t he stockholders attempted to have the cmsider-
ation inc eased to flve inches of water, but it was finally agreed
to accept the original offer, and on December 6, 1890, the

5
transaction was complsted.

Sgveral other small irfigation projects were undertaken during
the first half of thedecade, 1880-1890. On Yecember 25, 1880,

an item appeared in the colums of the Kecord which stated that
Messrs. Yalters, McAuslan and Nglson had located a ditech which
would have its intake from the Naches. The editor predicted that
the "future cgpital will undoubtedly be supplied with water from

this source."

8 few weeks later articles of incorporation
were filed wunder the name of the Yakima Valley and Water

Uompan.y"for the purpose of constructing and operating can-

-~

5

Iyman, History of the Yakims Valle% 363-363; Yakima Herald
dpril Bi 1887, govemﬁer'zﬁ, 27 y~Dece Ser i wi 1é90;7¥akima
Rgcord, Tebruary 7,March 27, ®pril 17, June 26, 18680.

6

Even at thils early date sam of the more enterprising cit-
ens of Yakima bipy visualized that place as the future capital
of the “tate of Yashingtone
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als, ditches, flumes, etc, armd by which to conduct water for the
purpose of irrigation, manufacture, municipal and damestic

use and for general imprvement." The cappany offered 10,000
shares of stock for sale at twenty dollars per share, but from
the evidence available the project never went beyond the paper

7
stage.

In March, 1880, it was reported that C.V., Fowler was working
on an irrigation ditch in the Moxee Valley. That canal was
completed ebout 1884, but it was later extended through Union Lxap
and became known as the Lombard and Horseley ditch.8

In 1882 the Moxee Ditch Company wasg organized and began a

Valley. The foliowing

ditch to irrigate a portion of the Maxee
year the company voted to receive bids for the digging o

1,240 rods (almost fouwr miles) of that canal, In 1884 the Yovernor
of the Territory reported that the Yakima iarm and Diteh Com-

pany had been organized some time before for the purpose of ir-
rigating the lands of the Moxee Valley. Probably he was referring
to the Moxee Ditch company under a reorganized name, although he
may have had 1In mind an entirely different enterprise., He

estimated that the comi.leted project would water about twenty
8

thousand aeres of land.

e

7
Yakima Herald, Uscember 26, 1880, January 8, 1881,

8
Ibid., March 27, 1880.

gIbid., July 15, 1882, “#pril 7, 1883: Watson C. Squire, Report

Of the Governorsof “ashington erritory,"(lBBé, in the p
Report of the ecretar% of ths I¥terior (48 Congress, 2 Segsion,
House ecutive Uocument No. 1, vol, 2 serial 2287, Wéshington,
1885, 634.



Sometime before 1887 a joint-stock corporation whtch was
composed of Kittitas county and Yacoma men began work on a.com~
. breBensive scheme of irrigation--another whibhh never progressed
much farther than the “paper: stage of development, <‘he corporation
proposed to dig four c;nals; one mown as the Teanaway Canal would
water the eastern par t of the Kitti tas Valley: fh‘e 8 ecord would
begin in the Tieton basin and extend %o Yakima VYity, a distance of
about fifty miles; the third would have 1td source in.the canyon of
the Yakima “iver five miles narth of Forth Yakims and would extend
about seventy-five miles until it reached the horseshoe bend of
the Yakima R;'Lvar;, the fourth woildbegin near Yakima City and would
extend one hundred fifty miles to a point below Yallula on the
€olumbia River. In 1887 soume work had been dorme on about twenty
miles of the first ditch which it was hoped wold be completed
in 1888 at a cost of ¥100,000. Half of the land which was
included in this extensive plan was owned by the Northern
Pacific Railroad company, and since that company was eng ged
by 1890-in the work of cas tructing a canal of its own, 1t is
readily understood that a chief obstacle toward the realization
ofthe plan was the railroad campany's title to the 1and.10

II

In the meantime there were several Important problems that

had grisen with regaid to irrigation developments. *he first

of these to appear was the que stion of the riparian rights of

10_ i
Semple,"Report of the Governor,ﬂ 1887, pp. 987-988.
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land owners along the streoama, #g early as 1883 one finds saue .
canplaint tha corpordﬂohs and irrigati on canpanies were
éncoraching upon the vested rights of individuals, although there
1s also evidence th % the riparian owners st times attempted
to monopolize the water to the exclusion of agiil others,
At that time there had been no 8torage reservoirs cons truc ted,
and since a number of t legtreams which Wwere used far irrigation
P rposes were small, there were certain per iods during the fawming
8eason when the Supply of water in them was limited,

In Februay, 1886, an gct to regulate irrigation and water
rights in Kittitas am Yakima counties was passed by the
Territerial Legiaslature, ;he act provided iiishat any person or
bpersons , carporation or company who may gave or hold é title or
possessory right or title to any agricultural lands within the 1limita
of Yakima or Kittitss countiese......shall be entitled to the
use and en joyment of the waters of the streams op creeks 1in
said counties for the pburposes of irrigetion and making
saild larmd available fopr a gricultural purposes."" he act
further made provis ion for securing the right-;f-way for ditch-
€8, dikes, or flumes by process of condemnation if consent
s8ould not be obteined from the owner, but specified that no water
should be diverted from a stream in such a manner as to affect
the rights of a prior appropriator. +He A law approved March
4, 1890 extended t he above brivileges to persons anywhere in
the state and added same fir ther provisions s In case the volume

of water from a stream wasg Insufficlent to constantly supe



66

ply the wants o the entire country through which it paséed,
the judge of the superior court in any centy through which
the stream ran was to appoint three com issiomrs who would
apportion the water to the several sections on alternate days,
thus providing all ladowners with an equitable disﬁr:lbution.
Yorporatios we ‘e gpecifically recagnized as having the right
to camstruct works for irrigsbl on purposes whether or not they
owred tHe lam through which the canals and ditchep wuld pess
but they wer emade subject to the regulations whidn mightl be
prescribed by the legislature from time to time. ®n act of the
year 1891 stnted that the right to use wabtor in anj.'y lake, pond
or flowing spring in this state, or the right [fto the use
of water flowing in &any river, stream , or ravine of this
state for irrigation...may bé scquired by appropriat ion; and
as betwoen ap ropriatioms the first In time is the first in
right." That act mpplied to persons , corpord ion's or associa=
tiong; and it also defined the cord itions under w/};ilich the ap-
propriation of such m’r'er rights should be made, l and attempted
to prevent 'cach advantage of the law for specuiatn.ve PUrpoOs=
68 Dby providing that the cors truction of works for irrigaetion
purposes muut comience within six months after p-stlm_, the noe
tice of ap;ropriatior\.ll ' }

Yhe leglslation regarding water ard ap, romrﬂﬂ.on rights
|

05
Kittitas Standard(Ellensburg), July 21, 1883; lLaws of
the Ferritory of Washington, 1883-1886, D...:09° ’sessTon Taws
of the “tate of "a8hin Ton, 1889/90 pp 706, 707, TEI-BZ;
Toid, 1891, p o27-528; vakima Herald, March 7 1889, January
9, 1890,
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was complemented by the passage of another law which provided
for the organization of irrigaﬁion.districts. It aimed both
to adjust difficulties over water rights and to £id in solving
the problem of securing the necessary capital to construct
irrigation works, The law, approved March 20, 1890, provided
for the organization of an irrigation district "Whenever fifty
or ®p majority of free holders owning lards susceptible of
one mode of irrigation from a common sourge, and by the same
system of works, deésire to provide for the Irrigation of the
SaMmeeessev..... A petition bearing the proper number of
qualified éignatursszand describing the boundary of the proposed
district was to be filed with the county commissioners of the
county in which the greatest portion of the district lay. If the
commissioners apyroved the petition they were required to
divide the district into fiw approximately equal parts and
order an electlion of five directors (ome to be chosen ‘
from each district), an assessor, a collector, and a treasurer.12
The management of the affairs of the district was to be in the
hands of the board of dire ctors who drew up the regulations
regarding the use and distribution of water; made the surveys
fo locate the éamals and other irrigation works acquired

such property as was necessary to carry out the purposes

for which the dﬂstrict was organized; issued 6 per cent bonds

to finance the ﬁndertakings (provided that the qualfied elect-

i2

A gubsequent law of 1895, amending the law of 1890, provided
for the clection of three directors instead of five, Se:sion
laws of the gState of Washington, 1895, p. 435, =
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ors of the distriect approved such issue; and entered into con-
tracts for the constructici of canals; reservolrs, dams, flumes,
and any other irrigation warks required. Bonds were to be li-
quidated amd retired at the end of thirty years according to
the following plan: At the end of fifteen years and continuing
through the twenty-ninth year, not less than six per cent was
to be retired each year; amd at the end of the thirtieth year
the balanceskwould be retired. Money to liquidate the bonds amnd
fior the payment of interest was to be obtaired through an
assessment on theproperty of the members of the district.ls
ﬁ‘Jcpensse\ss of thedistrict, inchding the repair and improvements
of the irrigation works, were to be met either by an assesament
against each member's property, or by charging fixed water
rates, or both. Lo stimulate the Qale of irrigetion bonds an-
other law, approved March 7, 1890, provided that railroad cors=
porations caild "také, require, own, negotiate, sell and guar-
antee bonds and stocks of canpanies or corporations which are
....organizéd for the purpose of'irrigaﬁhng and reclaiming

lands within this state." The same law gave railroads au-

13

Tbid.,436=-437, 441, The amendments to the law of 1890
provided for the retirement of irrigation district bonds in
twenty years according to the following plan: At the end of
eleven years, five per cent; at the end of twelve years, six
per cent; at the end of thirteen years, seven per cent; at the
end of fourteen years, eight per cent; at the end of fifteen
vears, nine per cent; at the end of sixteen year s, ten per centy
at the end of seventeen years, eleéven per cent; at the end of
eighteen years, thirteen per cent; at the end of nineteen year:s,
fifteen per cent; ard at the end of twenty years, sixteen per
cent. ‘he assessments for retiring the bmds were ordered by
the same law to be levied in the same ratio.
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thority to engage in reclamation projects of their own. That
was a logical step since the railroad companies owned so rauch

of the lami in the regions where irrigation was feasible.l4
I1T

The state having provided legislation which was favorable
for the development of irrigation projects, it is not surprising
" that there was considerable activity centering around such
developments between 1890 and 1800. & few of these had their
beginning in the previous decade but were not cmpleted until
after 1890,

In 1888 the lMoxee Company began the digging of a canal to
water its lands.ls The first ditch was completed in 1889 and
carried a body of water three feet deep. In 1893 the company
was trying to sell 17,000 water.rights alter whiech it Wbuld
construct a secoﬁd canal on the higher bench lands, It would
have been fifteen miles long ard would have watered about 6,000
acres, but there is no evidence that 1t was const ructed during
the remainder of the period tfore 1900. Probably the panic of

16
1893 caused a cessation of activity. of the project,

14

Session Laws of the State of Washi ton, 1889/90, pp.529
67I-873. “pparently there was a ?eelgng That the bmds of irri-

gation districts were not a security for first class investment.
A morethorough study would probably reveal that the intersts

of the Northern Pacific had wielded considerable influence in
securing 1ts passage, as that company almost immediately began
i1ts huge irrigation in the Yakima alleye

15 :

This was the lioxee Land Cogipany, not the ditch company.

16
Boening,"His tory of Irrigation,” 268; Lyman, History of




During the same year in which the Moxee Company began work
on its canal, the Selah Valley Ditenh company was organizéd
by John #. Stone of Pierce County. The canal which that campany
constructed was the largest irrigation enterprise that had
been undertaken in the Yakima Valley. It was reported that the
campany bought 10,000 acres of land from the Northern Pacific
Rajilroad Company and proposed to gell it to actual settlers
at a price which included perpetual water rights. 117
The canal took water from the Naches River about thirty miles
from 1ts mouth and carried it to the Seleh Valley just a few
milés above North Yakima. It was constructed under considerable
difficulty at a cost of #75,000, but it was conaidered to be
oneof +the best ditches 1n the county . Its completed
length was twenty-two'miles and 1t carried water to a depth
of three and @ half feet. ‘he work of that project was not
coupleted until the fall of 1891, Theré seems to have been some
gort of reoganizatioh effected later, for in 1895 a petition
was received by the judge of the superior court of Yakima

uounty to appoint a receiver for the affairs of the Selkh

the Yakima Vallel, 353-354 ;Yakima Berald, April 20, 1893,

B ymter ri%ﬁ% conslsted of & guarantee of a certain amount

of wmter. 'ar-ious measures were used at that time, but for
exemple a flow of one miner's inch of water continually was
said tobe sufficient to water fram five to fiffteen acres

of land. ® miner's inch then, might be called a water right.
Ir g farmer ovmed five times &as much land as a water right
could satisfactorily irrigate, he would then have to purchase
five water rightse.

17

‘he price charged probably averaged about forty dollars
per acre as that was the estimated value of the land with water
according to a report to the federal governmente. It corresponds
also to prices charged by other companlies,
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Valley Iprigation Company. <The Bondholders who filed the

petition had brought action because the -company had defaulted
in the payment of interest on 1ts bonds, and after hearing

the evidence the judge granted the request. It was predicted
by the Herald that the receivership would probably last only =
short time . fhe prediction may have come true but the property
eventually passed into the control of the bondholdérs who
continued to make improvemesnts on the canal system and to try

18
to induce settlement on their lands,

Uompan.y began

In 1889 the Yakima Ifrigation and Improvement
work on a projecf to furnish irrigation facilities for the
lower Yakima Valley. Originally the plan of this company(under
the name, Oneida Company) was to construct a cansal on the north
s8ide of the Yakima River which would have its intake rear
Kiona,iwould water four thousand acres of land which had been

acquired by the company and would carry enough water to also

supply homesteaders farther down the river, The company ine-

18

The author is certain that this cumpany amd the Selah
Valley Ditch “Yompany were the s.me organization, for the presddent
of both was J.A, Stone; and Fechter & law, Yakims Heal estate
agents and owners of consi.erable stock in the D%tch company
were in 1895 advertising the lands of the Selah Yalley
Irrigation Company.

19

Richardj. Hinton, A Report of Irrigatioe and the “uyltivation
gf the Soil *hereby,—with FRysical DEtE; VoWITEions BIT TTORFDSs
Within The United States for 1891, “ccompanied by Maps, TlIustrations
and Frapers (52 ~ongress, 1 Session, Senate Executive Pocument
No, 41, Vol, 4, part 1, Serial 2899, Washington, 1892)
269 Lyman, History of the Yakima Yalley , 353; Yakima Herald
February 2, July 4, December 19, I - dJanuary ¢, Feb.iuary 6,
April 3, June 12, 1890; *ugust 6, October 1, 22, 1891, April 4
October 17, November 7, 1895; April 28, 1899,
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fended to construct a canal of sufficient size to carry boats
into the Yakima ‘‘iver where they cecould receive and discharge
freight at terminals which would be established at Kiona. Such
& plan would have pfovided the cm pany and thefarmers who had
land along the canal with egsy &ccess to railroad transportation-

The Oneida Company was forced into receivership in 1889, but
80 much money had been put into thepurchase of land that a
reorganization was effected and plans were pushed forward to
realize senething fram ﬁhe enterprisegzo Accordingly 8 gsome-
what less pretentiocus plan was developed by which a canal of
8ixty miles was to be comstructed to place under irrigation
about 50,000 acres between Kiona and Wallula. :he main ditch
was located on the south side of the Yakims River but it was
the infention of the company to provide water for the narth
side by means of condults across the river. Work on this pro-
Ject was under way in January, 1892, and by 1894 the canal
had been finlshed as far as Hover, a distance of about forty=-
five miles from its intakel The original canal proved to be
inadequate to provide water for both sides of the river, but 1t
was later enlarged to meet those needs.

In the meantirme a company wﬁs organized under the name,

Yakima & Kemnewick Irrigation Compiany(popularly known as the

Leadbetter Company)s Its chief promoter was ¢.H. Leadbetter

20

The author has made no attempt to analyze the causes or
results of the verious reogganiz&tion schemes which occured
among irrigation companies., This ia an important subject
in the history o irrigation, but except as it hindered or
furthered the cmstruction of irrigation works 1t probably had
very little effect upon the agriculture of the valley,
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2l
of Portland , and it was leargely promoted by outside capital.

?he company proposed to irrigate the lands of the Dell Haven
Irrigation Bistrict (w th was situated on the west bank of
the Columbia River, just below the mouth of the Yakima) and
8,0008 acres of its own. On the north side of the Yakima Riv
er it pfoposed to provide water for the district lying betwsen
the Mattlesnake Hillé and the Columbia. In order to locate
1ts main canal high enough to furnish water for this project
it was necessary to begin the ditch near Kjona, the same place
that had been chosen by the Yakima Irrigation and Improvement
"‘COmpany for the intake o i1ts canal. In January 1892, a controversy
arogse between the two companies because the Leadbetter Uompany
had attempted to begin the construction of its ditch on land
which was owned by the Yakims Irrigation and Improvement
Company. The litigation which fol.owed this difficulty delayed
the work, and-the Leadbatter Company apparently modified
its plan, for it wasg reported in Juyne that the company's
ditch would start at Prosser Falls amd run on'the north side
of the river for nineteen miles, fhen it would cross the
river and continue to Kennewick,then follow the Columbia
Hiver to a point opposite Wallula. In September, 1892, it was re-
ported that an agreement e d been reached betw en the two dis=
puting comjanies regarding'the verritory which each was to sup-
ply with water.

Early in 1893 the Yakima Iprigation and Improvement Come

21
The president of thls company wes E.H.Simmons of New York,
and the vice-president was J.,M. Jones of Ohio,
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apy aequired a ﬁart of the Lgadbetter interests, but the hard
times which ensued halted.the enterprise and the interssts of
the Impravementicompany were in turn aoqdired by the.Dell Haven
Irrigation District which operated the cansl between 1893 and
1896. “he irrigation district also failed to maintain itself
and was forced to liquidate . Irrigation enterprise in the Kenw
néwick region langulshed until 1902 when the NOrthern Pacific
Railroad which had acquired the stock of the Dell Haven irrigation
gistrict resumed operations.22

3 Early in 1890 a great deal of enthusiamm was shown for an
lrrigation project which would water lands in the Tieton and
"ide Hollow regions, * civil engineer, J.D. McIntyre and a

few assoclates proposed to dig a canal from the Naches Hivep
above mietbneand to provide water for the lands of the Uowiche,
Ahtanum anmd Wide Hollow dlstricts. Tt was recognized as a dif-
ficult undertaking and the estimated cost of the canal was placed
at ¥400,000, one-fourth of which thefarmers in the area were

to provide by buying stock in the company. ¥ach subseriber

was to buy one share of stock(at a par value of five dollars)
for each acre of land which he proposed to water, and to

pay an annual water rental of one dollar or 6ne dollar and a
half , fhat purchase entitied him to share in any dividends

that might be declared. In lieu of the above plan he could pur-

22

Interstate Publishing Compagy, Illustrated History, 1853
Lyman, History of, the Yakima 'alldy, B54-355; Yakima Herald
October 3,1889; “ebrusfy 27, IﬁgﬁEzUctober 22, December 24,
1891; January 14; 28, June 50, September 1, November 17, 1892,




o

chase a permanent w ater right for fz,ooo payable in installments

and pay thereafter twenty-five cents per acre to keep the

ditch in repair. That plan did nd materialize , but a few months

later in the year the Cowiche and Wide Hollow Irrigation

District was organized by the landowners of that region,

and in September an engineer was engaged to make a gurvey for

a canal from the main channel of. the Yietan River., Surveys were

.made and favorable reports were received'cqlcerning the

Teasibility of the project. “n January 9, 1892, an election

was held tc vote on a pfoposal to bond the didriet for half

a million dollars for the construction of the irrigat ion works,

ihe bond issue was défeated but the agltation and discussion

which arose over the question is credited with having prepared

the way for the later government project in that region.z5
Toward the end of 1803 a project of somewhat different

nature was undertaken near Prosser where the land was too high

to be reclaimed by a gravity system of irrigation. In Eebruary

1894 surveysrs were investigating the poasibility of using

the fall in the Yakima River at that place to provide power

to raise the water to a level where it could be used. The

plan proved feasible and on Apmil 16, 1894 the towm of Prosser

celebrated the completion of the enterprise whth rether elabor-

ate ceremonies., The project made use of large turbines and two

duplex pumps which rgised the water one hundred feet so that it

23

Interstate Publishing Compa ¥, Illustrated Hjistory, 1863
Lyman, History of the Yakima alley, 361; Yakima Herald, Janu-
ary 16, 29, September 18, 1890, #pril 23, 1891,
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could be carried by flumes to the irrigation canals, The de-
pBession years proved to be hard on the Proszer Yalls Irriga-
tion lompany, however,and in Kay, 1899, its jroperty includ-
ing the townsite was sold by the receiver. In 1911 the Prosser
Irrigating project was incorporited into the government
system of the Sunnyside Canal.2*

he Yakima Land anpany was organized in 1891 to test the
possibllitges of procuring water for irrigation from artesian
wells, ?he company flled on five sections of land in the Moxee
Valley under the provisions of the Desert Land fct, and made a
number of purchases of railroad lands in that regicn. Well
boring machinery was imported from S5t Paul, and in August of
that yéar arteslan water was struck in the first well, £ gec-
ond well was begun immediately but 1t did not Prove a success.
In Januvary, 1892, however, water began to flow from the comp-
any's third well., Tre amount of water from the two was es-
timated at some thing over a million gallons a day. Sﬁch a
quantity was sufficient to irrigsate a halfwsection of land.
by flowing wells, the Pacific “rtesian and Land Company(
which had begun operations at about the seme time) had two,
one of which was reported to yield 2,400,000 gallons of
water per day., It was sald that thers was only one other
artesian well in the United States which surpassed it in quantity

of water.for a wahile 1t was believed by many that artesans could
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be located anywhere in phe Yak ima Valley and thus provide the
higher bench lands with irrigationwfacilities. Greological SUr-
veys later showed, however, that thers was a comparatively small
and well defined artesian basin located in the Moxee Valley.,
Bfforts to secure flowing water in other sections failed to
meet with success. During the remainder of the decade numerous
éxperiments were conducted to utilize every possibility of
irrigation with artesian water. In &

T
ported that there were eleven flowing wells in the Moxee Val-

ebruary 1897, the Herald re-

ley. In June, 1899, that number had increased to sixteen, fhnre
isevidence however that by the latter date the water pressure
was falling for when the first wells were bared there were
at lsast two from which the water rose fifteen feet asbove
the surface, whereas a report in 1899 stated that “one Welleae
spouts its flow of water 8 fest above_the ground."ﬂ

From the standpoint of permanency the artesian wells did
not ﬁpove to be & success, ‘hose that are In use today no
longer flow freely, and the water has to be lifted with
pumps. For iA04é anumber of years, however, they played a
father impobtant part in the irrigation progress of the
valley. The bureau of Statistics reported in 1903 that there
were thirty gglls in the valley which irrigated an area of

2,915 acres.

25

5oening,"History of Iprigation, 281; Bureau or statistics,
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(O1ympia, 1903) 53;F.H. Newell,"Report on Agriculture by
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fhe most extensiyve irrigation enterprise of the Yakima
Valley before 1900 was begun when the Yakima Canal and Land
Company was organizéd in 1889 with a capital stock of one mil-
lion dollars divided into two hundredthousand shares of fifty
dollars each. The company was organized as a result of the en=-
ergy of "alter N. Granger amd J.D. McIntyre of Helena, Montana,
who succgéded in interesting same Chicago capitalis£5‘to form
the company with them. Both Granger and M¢Intyre had had ex-
perience with Irrigation projects in Montana. ?he Yakima Canal
anet Land Company planned to purchase 1,000,000 acres of land
to which it held an option fram the Northern Paciflc Kailroad
Company and to cmstruct a canal one hundred miles in length
to supphy water right at a greatly increased price, the com-
pany ssatimated that it wauid realize asconsiderable amount of
profit, |

A& preliminary survey for the canal was made in the fall

of 1889 and the report proved so encouraging that the Northern
Pacific Railroad Company a@so became interested in the possi-
bilitiles of the project. Under the direction of Paul Schulze
of facoma, the railroad cqmpan§ made a survey of its own, and
thermade advances toward the incorscration of the interests
of the two comyanies. Barly in 1890 the state legislature

pessed the law giving railrcad companies the right to

(Washington}895) 247; Wyckoff,"Irrigation," 253; Yakima

Herald May 21, June 11, July 16, *ugust 20, 27, Séptemuer 10
17, October 1, 1891 January 28Yebruary 18, March 10, “pril

14, May 19, 1892, January 26, November 30, December 311893,
May 31, November 20, 1894, ~ ebruary 25, June 24, 1897, June 22,
1899,
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guarantee the bonds o irrigation companies &nd to engage in
reclamation projects of their own, and a few months la ter (Pugust
28, 1890) the 'merg;ing of the inbterests of the two companies was
tealizeds. "chulze who was in the lard department of the railroad
became the president, ard C%ranger the viece-president and general
manager of the new campany which was called the Northern Pacific,
Yakima & Kittitas Iprigation Company. ’?he original plans of

the vakima “anal and lani Company were greatly expanded .Bites
were surveyed for the canstruction of seven reservolrs in the
mountains in arder to store the water againat perlods when

the streams were low; and it was decided to construct three
canals, one in Kittitas county and the other two in Yakima
County. YYe first of these(and the only one to be cons tructed
by that compan'y)' began on the east side of the Yakima River
about two miles below Union Gap ard extended for sixty miles
toward the south, emptying into the river opposite the town

of Ppogser. It was known as the Sunnyside Canal, and is the

one which incorporated the old Konnewock ditch vhich had

been constructed during the previous decade .26 The s cond

Yakime county canal was to take water from the Haches River

and cover the bench lands on the west side of the Yakima,

It wa. Mnown as the Sunnyside High Line,and 1t materiallzed

only after the federal government entered the fleld of
reclamation.

“ork onthe Sunnyside Canal began in the spring of 1891,

26

Pee page =--62
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and on lMarch 26, 1892 the first twenty-five miles was formall$
opened amld elabarate ceremonies., In November of the same
-year the contract was signed for the construction of the
remaind er of the canal.27

ihe financial difficulties of 1893 greatly retarded the
work of that project, however. Paul Schulze made several at-
tempts during 1893 and 1894 to float bads in order that the
work could be continued but his efforts met only partial suc-
cess, and as the company's land sales declined and interest
payments ca1ld not be met, a crisis developed. # complete
collapse of t he canpany was tem orarily averted by reorganizing
1t with the Yakima Investment Company, but in January,1895 that
company went into receivership att he request of the Califore
Trust Company, the trustee for the irrigation c‘oinpany's 80=
curities . The subsequent suiciie of. Schulze in April of the
same year led to an irmw estl ation whiéh revealed that he had
grossly misap ropriated the funds of both the N“érthern Pacific
and the Yakima Investment Company.28

Yhe irr igation company remained in receivers hip during the

remainder of the decade, and although it catinued to push the

27 :
"Great Yakima Iprigation Cenal," in Northwest Magazine

10:36(April 1892); Interstate Publishing company, Illustrated
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Side Canal,, oposite plate 15; Yakims Herald » June 13, September
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April 18,25, fugust 22, 1895, March 19,1896,




81

work of the canal as fast as possible, progress yas quite slow,
By 1899 forty-fiw miles of the maln canal were completed wikh
enough laterals to reclaim most of the land which lay under the
finishe d part of the ditch. Dueing that time the company made
& number of attempts to organize but all of them were un-
suceessful, ard in July 1899 Jud e Hanford ordered the bropsrty
of the Yakima Investment Company to be sold at auction,
It was acquired by the Washington Irrigation Company which was
financed with Portland capital, %he new owners spert considerre
able money on improvements for the enterprise and enco: raged
bhe seitlement of lands by lowering the price ami of ferirg it
for sale at easy terms. 'f'he work of the "ashington Iprigatiom
Company is credited Wiihuhaving prepared the way for govern-
ment enterprise in the Yalkims Valley.29
IV
B

furthering irrigati on ente rprise beyond passing some legislation

efore 1900 the federal govermment did very little toward

which aimed to help private capitel to develop irrigation
mojects. *he desert lamd act of 1877 mas already been dis-
cussed ard wasthe fist effort to mke soms provision for re-
claiming arid lands. #fter 1890 there was & great deal of aggiw

tation from a number of westernstates cmcernig the quese

29

‘ v ) ;
Lyman, Hlstory of the Yakima 'alley 360; Yakima Herald
April g, Kugus% 6, September 24, 3 January 28, July 29,
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82

tion of federal aid for reclamati on projects, “ongressmen,
however, were Op.osed to lending such help because they could
readlly see how expensive it wou 1d becoms . 1’0 rrevent undus
speculation in arid lands, ho%rever, a law was passed in 1888
whilch provided for a geolegical survey under the direction o f
the department of the inte rior. Its burpose was to locate
cites fop reservoirs, ditches or éanals for irrigation purposs
©8, amd to reserve fram sale the lands which would be affected
by such works. Except for an act amending the desert land law
of 1877, no further legis 1ation affecting arid lams was pasaed
until 1894 when provision was mde for the states to make apa
plication to receive not to exceed one million acres of arid
lands from the public domaine Such portion of the grant as had
not been reclaimed by the state at the end of ten years was to
revert back to the federal govermment. In 1895 the Legisha-
ture of the state of Washington passed an act creating a Come
missioner of “rid Lands whae duty it was to make a seldction
of such lands as the state would accept under tie terms of the
federal law. The commissimer was empowered to enter into con-
tracts with invididuals or with corparations far the reclama=
tion of the lads which were selected, and to sell land to in-
dividuvals in not less than ten @ more then forty-acre tracts.so
In 1896 the Yakima land office received application from the
commissioner to s8egregate 77,180 acres of lands in Yakima

30
This latter provision was mede in the law of 1897 which
amended the law of 1895, Pession Laws of the State of Wagh

ington, 1897, p., 354,
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Uounty for state use, but for the remainder of the decade prie-

vate capital shawed little interest in developing new irriga-
tion projects.31

“efore 1900, however, tie first .overmment irrigation
project in the Yakima Valley did materialize in the form of
two ditches which were dug onthe west side of the vakima River
on the Indian reservation. “hey were finished i 1897 ami with-
in a year or two white men began to lease large areas of the
reservation for farming pur: 0868.52 Thus it was that before the
beginning of the twentieth century the whole Yakims Valley was
provided with facilities to water its lands. Besides the pro-
Jects which have been dis cussed thee ware & number of others
which, although they were small in themselves, combined to fur-
nish wter f& a great many acres of land. ‘he general growth
of irrigation isshown by the fact that there were in 1889,
295 irrigators who had under cultiva tion 15; 129 acres of land
in the Yakima ialley. In 1899 the number of irrigators had
lncreased to 1;307 while the acresge irrigated was 56,611, an
increase of 41,482 acres or mare than twice the et ire acreage

33
which had been irrigated ten years earlier.
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A summary of the projects in irrigation is represented by
the following tables “lthough the figures are for the year
1896, they represent approximate Iy the status of irrigation
at the end of the decade, for with the exception of the Indien
reservation projects, no irrigationworks o any consdquence
were begun after 1893,

"A Table Showing the anals that have been constructed op
surveyed in Yakimg county, the ir size and the area of lands

. cres
i sl A i§%ia§9d Bilegage. to ReL98inea  Cultivated
> V OIHB ace ompleted
elah "alley Canal 2 —— 6,000 1,000
Yakima Valley Land 16 - 3,000 700
O,
Eacoma & Yakima i2 24 ————— SR
and Co
Naches & Cowiche 7 - 3,000 3,000
Union, Broadguage 16 - 5,000 4,500
& Schanno
Moxes Canals(3) 33 18 5,050 2,150
Moxee Artesian
%ells (8) - - 1,250 550
Yakima Investment 42 18 : 50,000 9,860

Company
Yakima Irrigation &

Tmpr ove ment 00(5) 51 - 17,710 1,100

Proasser Falls .

Irrigation Col 8 - 5,000 350

shhtanum Yalley 100 = 16,000 16,000

#Naches Valley RE - 8,000 8,000

#Wenas 'alley 8 za 4,800 4,800

#Cowiche Valley 12 = 4,000 4,000

Indian Reservation 26 32 14,600 14,600
Lotal 365 92 141,410 70,610

#+3mall Canals

54 -

Price, First Annual Report of the Lureau of Statistics,

1896, p. 29





